
ADDRESS: 514 S 4TH ST  
Proposed Action: Reclassify Property in Historic District Inventory    
Property Owner: Sandra & Joseph Lichtman   
Applicant: Sandra & Joseph Lichtman    
Staff Contact: Meredith Keller, meredith.keller@phila.gov  
 
OVERVIEW: This application requests to reclassify the property at 514 S. 4th Street from 
significant to non-contributing in the Society Hill Historic District. The property includes a three-
story building fronting S. 4th Street and a two-story building with a half-gambrel roof at the rear 
of the lot. A one-story infill structure adjoins the buildings. The property is described as follows 
in the entry from the Society Hill Historic District inventory:  
 

 

 
 
The application asserts that the property is unsalable due to its classification as a significant 
resource in the Society Hill Historic District. The applicants, in this case the property owners at 
the time of designation, contend that they received notice of the property’s designation but not 
notice of the nomination, which would have provided them with information regarding public 
meetings and a means to participate in the process. The application argues that the Historical 
Commission staff has “not approached the issuance of demolition permits in a reasonable and 
practical way,” though no demolition permits have ever been submitted.  
 
The application fails to provide any evidence that the property lacks historic value or that the 
property no longer meets the criteria that caused its entry on the Philadelphia Register of 
Historic Places. Instead, the application seeks to reclassify the property to allow for the 
demolition of its significant buildings and redevelopment of the site.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Denial of the reclassification of 514 S. 4th Street as non-contributing, 
pursuant to Section 5.14 of the Historical Commission’s Rules & Regulations. 
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Figure 1: The property at 514 S. 4th Street, which includes a three-story rowhouse fronting S. 4th 
Street and a two-story half-gambrel building at the rear of the lot, April 2020. Source: 
Pictometry. 
 
 
 
 

  
Figure 2: The property at 514 S. 4th Street, 2020. Source: Cyclomedia. 
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Figure 3: The property at 514 S. 4th Street now visible from Gaskill Street, 2020. Source: 
Cyclomedia. 
 

 
 
Figure 4: Photograph of the rear two-story building with a half-gambrel roof, 2020. Source: 
Cyclomedia. 
 



 
Figure 5: The property at 514 S. 4th Street in 1959. Source: Department of Records. 
 
 



Sandra and Joe Lichtman 
1819 Fireside Ln 

Cherry Hill, NJ 08003 
 
 
 

To: Members of the Committee on Historic Designation 
       Members of the Historic Commission 
From: Sandra and Dr. Joe Lichtman 
Re: request for change from significant to non-contributing designation of 514 S 4th  
       St 
  
 
We are requesting that our property be changed from significant to non-
contributing property within the Society Hill historic district, .  
 
We purchased this property in 1986, and to the best of our knowledge, we were 
never given an opportunity to comment on the designation of Society Hill as 
“historic”. Therefore, we were denied due process.  
 
We received a letter in July 1999 notifying us of the Society Hill historic designation.  
We were given to understand that the staff of the Commission would approach 
issuance of demolition permits in a reasonable and practical way and also 
understand changes in building uses and contemporary requirements.  We have not 
found this to be the case. 
 
We have been trying to sell our building for a year, and we have found that the 
historic designation is a deterrent, and not a benefit. The only interest to date has 
been from developers who would like to demolish the property and combine it with 
one or two adjoining parcels to build new housing.  
 
The property to the left of ours is 516 S 4th St.  This is a group of 10 individually 
owned parking spaces. Six of these spaces have been placed under contract by a 
developer with the hopes of building new housing. I’ve recently been told that 
without being able to add our property to the parcel, they will not be interested in 
moving forward with this project.  
 
The property to the right of ours, 512 S 4th, is a 3 story home with a garage that was 
built in 1980, according to tax records. The same developer has expressed interest 
in acquiring all three properties for their new home construct project.  
 
Our property is a 3 story building with an office in the front, 2 apartments above 
that, and a trinity in the rear.  
 
 



After a year of trying to sell the building, we have come to understand that the 
highest and best use of this property would be to demolish it and join it together 
with 516, or 516 plus 512. No one has expressed interest in purchasing the building 
for use as office/apartments.  
 
If any developer goes ahead with plans to build at 516, our building will be 
sandwiched between two modern structures – certainly this is not the look of a 
historic district. The next 3 properties on our side of 4th St. between ours and 
Lombard St are modern homes with garages that were built in 1980.  Removing our 
building from the list of historic properties will allow for continuity on the block as 
well as greatly increased tax revenue.  This is certainly in the best interest of the 
city. 
 
Another important factor to consider is tax revenue. The parking spaces at 516 S 4th 
St. generate minimal real estate revenue compared with that which would be 
derived from new housing.  Our property would also be taxed at a much higher rate 
with new housing.  
 
In the July 1999 letter, the Commission Chair indicates the designation would likely 
“enhance resale values”. This appears not to be the case in our situation. 
 
In light of the foregoing, I would respectfully ask if the Historic Designation is 
fulfilling its intended result. It appears, in this situation, that it does not.  
 
Therefore, we respectfully request a change of the classification of our property. 
 
I can be reached at 609-922-4967 or at doitallady@gmail.com. 
 
Thank you for considering our proposal. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Sandra and Joe Lichtman 
 
 
Sandra and Dr. Joe Lichtman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 



 



view from side of building on Gaskill showing many alterations prior to our 
ownership[ 
 

 
512, 510, and 508 S 4th St.  
built  


















